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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  This is a

          3  hearing of the Committees on Small Business,

          4  Waterfronts, and Sanitation to focus on the problem

          5  of illegal dumping into the New York City waterways.This

          6  is a follow- up to a hearing that the Waterfronts

          7  Committee held a few months ago, in which I think it

          8  is fair to say, it was clear that we are not doing

          9  the kind of enforcement job that we could be, and

         10  should be when it comes to illegal dumping.  And the

         11  record that that hearing was based on, was a record

         12  of several referrals over the course of a year to 18

         13  months, that by environment advocates, two various

         14  city agencies, looking for enforcement, and of the

         15  provisions- there are several provisions in the New

         16  York City Administrative Code dealing with this;

         17  Section 22- 112, navigable waters, "it shall be

         18  unlawful to place, discharge, deposit any offal,

         19  piles, lumber, et cetera, et cetera or any other

         20  refuse matter floatable or unfloatable or otherwise

         21  in the Port of New York, except under the

         22  supervision of the United State Supervisor of the

         23  Harbor."  That conduct is a misdemeanor, shall be

         24  punished by a fine of not more than $250, or

         25  imprisonment for not more than six months.
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          2                 There are also rules in the

          3  Department of Small Business Services.  The

          4  Department of Small Business Rule 205 reads,

          5   "dumping, polluting or obstructing waters.  No

          6  person shall place, discharge or deposit on or about

          7  any waterfront property or in the waters of the Port

          8  of New York, the Port of the State of New York, any

          9  drift or debris, except under the supervision of the

         10  United States Supervisor of the Harbor."

         11                 So those are rules implementing that

         12  provision of the Administrative Code.

         13                 The purpose of our last hearing, and

         14  then there has been correspondence since then, was

         15  simply to find out what enforcement is being done of

         16  these rules in the Administrative Code.

         17                 I think, at least I think the record

         18  shows that we really have not been enforcing these

         19  provisions.  So the goal of this hearing is to

         20  figure out how we can begin to enforce them, or if

         21  they need to be changed in some way, to address the

         22  problems that these provisions purport to address,

         23  what changes we need to make.

         24                 Now, I personally think that part of

         25  the problem is been through- because of a dispersion
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          2  of responsibility among various agencies.  The

          3  Department of Sanitation, the Department of Small

          4  Business Services, the Department of Environmental

          5  Protection and this is not really in any way, I do

          6  not mean to say this in any way to be critical of

          7  the Bloomberg Administration, this structure well

          8  pre- dates the Bloomberg Administration, so the goal

          9  here, I think, it is not all to be critical but

         10  rather to say, "what is the best structure moving

         11  forward to make sure that we do have some

         12  enforcement?"

         13                 Let me be clear as to why I think the

         14  City needs to do it.  Unfortunately, would it be

         15  better to have a Federal Environmental Protection

         16  Agency and a State Department of Environment

         17  Conservation that were aggressive and committed to

         18  finding polluters and penalizing them?  Yes, maybe

         19  that would be the ideal solution.  Sadly, we live in

         20  a world without those agencies.  With the EPA and

         21  the state DEC have proven themselves either

         22  unwilling or incapable of acting against polluters

         23  in New York City, and so I believe, the City

         24  government needs to do whatever it can to protect

         25  New Yorkers.
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          2                 So, that is the goal here.  There are

          3  two bills specifically before us, Intro. 500 which

          4  raises penalties, as I read a minute ago, the

          5  Administrative Code provision that does deal with

          6  this, has a maximum fine of $250.  I do not think

          7  anybody here would feel that that is much of a

          8  deterrent for would- be polluters, and Intro. 581,

          9  which addresses the enforcement structure question

         10  by centralizing enforcement responsibility within

         11  the Department of Small Business Services, and

         12  providing some- requiring an enforcement plan, and

         13  reports to the Council, all of which are designed to

         14  strengthen the enforcement mechanism.

         15                 So let me just say before we turn to

         16  the other council members, I have heard from the

         17  Administration folks earlier today that they are not

         18  sure that the Department of Small Business Services

         19  is the right place to do it.  I am open to that

         20  discussion but I do think that we need one central

         21  place of enforcement, and then a commitment on the

         22  part of whatever agency that is to follow it

         23  through.

         24                 So with that, Chair Nelson.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Thank you, Mr.
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          2  Co- Chair.

          3                 I think the theme of this hearing,

          4  and indeed I think the theme should be for the

          5  people who are at the city level, care about the

          6  environment and our waterways is enforcement and

          7  coordination, and enough monetary penalties, but

          8  appropriate ones as far as trying to create a

          9  climate where it is just not worth it for businesses

         10  or individuals to do so.

         11                 The coordination is a real emphasis

         12  besides the first theme, in that you can almost make

         13  an analogy between the FBI, the CIA, Homeland

         14  Security, our own OEM, not working together and

         15  there is a problem for the entire population.  But

         16  if we can coordinate properly, and give the right

         17  agency the responsibility to do it, and we are

         18  leaning towards the City right now, then we could

         19  really, really take a chunk out of what is happening

         20  negatively to our waterways.

         21                 Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you.

         23                 We are also joined here by Council

         24  Member Gennaro, a member of the Sanitation

         25  Committee, but of course, chair of our Environmental
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          2  Protection because, and it is really historic

          3  reasons, I guess, that this authority has been in

          4  Small Business Services rather than what might seem

          5  like its more natural home, the Department of

          6  Environmental Protection.

          7                 Chair Gennaro, do you want to have an

          8  opening comment?

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Thank you

         10  Chairman Yassky, Chairman Nelson.

         11                 Certainly as chair of the Committee

         12  on Environmental Protection, and also a member of

         13  the Committee on Sanitation, I am very interested in

         14  all aspects of people who dump anything illegal any

         15  place.

         16                 This is of particular concern

         17  because, at any time, we are talking about fouling

         18  our waterways with this type of dumping, and we have

         19  to do whatever we can, and I wish to salute

         20  Councilman Yassky for his capacity as chair of

         21  Waterfronts for prying into this and combing through

         22  the Administrative Code to, sort of, find out what

         23  the legal lay of the land is, and who has got what

         24  kind of jurisdiction.

         25                 So, we have taken a ball of string
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          2  and we have picked it up in the air, and so now we

          3  have to unravel it.  I am confident that we will be

          4  able to unravel it in such a way that we can have a

          5  clear road map to protecting the waterways and

          6  waterfronts of New York City, and I pledge my

          7  cooperation to Council Member Yassky, Council Member

          8  Nelson, Council Member McMahon, and all those who

          9  are very concerned with this issue on the council.

         10                 So, thank you for this opportunity to

         11  speak, and I want to help unravel or re- ravel this

         12  ball of yarn.

         13                 Thank you.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you.

         15                 We will now hear from Andrew

         16  Schwartz, First Deputy Commissioner, Department of

         17  Small Business Services.  He is joined by Thomas

         18  Milova from the Department of Sanitation, and Leslie

         19  Lipton from the Department of Environmental

         20  Protection.  They are here, I guess, as resources

         21  and we will hear from First Deputy Commissioner

         22  Schwartz, please.

         23                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         24  Thank you Chairman Yassky, and good afternoon,

         25  Chairman Nelson, members of the various committees.
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          2                 I am Andrew Schwartz, Deputy

          3  Commissioner with SBS, with my colleagues in city

          4  government, from Sanitation and Environmental

          5  Protection.

          6                 The mission of SBS is to make it

          7  easier for companies in New York City to form, do

          8  business and grow.  But as a successor agency to

          9  some of the functions of the Department of Ports and

         10  Trade, SBS has regulatory jurisdiction for

         11  waterfront permitting and inspection of certain

         12  waterfront property.

         13                 And in this context SBS inspects

         14  properties for hazardous condition, monitors for

         15  compliance with construction permits, issues notices

         16  of violation and summonses, and assists in the

         17  abatement of hazardous conditions through fencing

         18  and interagency coordination.  It also monitors the

         19  waterfront for illegal docking, orders the removal

         20  of submerged vessels, maintains waterfront property

         21  records, and works with the agencies on transfers,

         22  leasing and permitting of City- owned waterfront

         23  property.

         24                 In an effort to improve the focus of

         25  SBS on its primary mission of assisting and serving
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          2  the over 200,00 small businesses in our City, we

          3  have sought, where possible, to transfer unrelated

          4  functions to appropriate agencies.

          5                 Accordingly, over the last several

          6  years, the regulation of the public wholesale

          7  markets was moved from SBS to the Business Integrity

          8  Commission.  As I explained during questioning at

          9  your last hearing, we intend to seek approval to

         10  transfer jurisdiction of waterfront inspection to

         11  the Department of Buildings.  Doing this will

         12  provide one- stop shopping for individuals seeking

         13  construction permits, plans review or inspections.

         14                 Currently, there is a bifurcated

         15  system where certain construction on the waterfront

         16  comes to SBS, while residential and other non-

         17  maritime waterfront construction goes to the

         18  Department of Buildings.  We believe this move would

         19  increase efficiency for those seeking permits, and

         20  remove what is basically an extraneous regulatory

         21  function from SBS.

         22                 The issue today, and the proposed

         23  bills, relate to SBS through an Administrative Code

         24  provision dating from a period of the working

         25  waterfront in New York City.  The concern with water
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          2  quality and pollutants being dispersed into

          3  waterways is now generally covered through the

          4  City's Department Environmental Protection, the

          5  State DEC, the United States Coast Guard and Army

          6  Corps of Engineers.

          7                 As described above, the resources of

          8  the SBS Dockmaster Unit are essentially focused on

          9  hazardous conditions and structures on property,

         10  bulkheads, piers and vessels.  As noted by examining

         11  the related sections of Title 22 of the

         12  Administrative Code, these provisions refer to

         13  waterfront property and not water quality.

         14                 The particular provision of 22- 112,

         15  which is the subject of Intro. 500, though available

         16  for incidents of dumping refuse in the waters, is an

         17  older section of law that has been effectively

         18  superseded by a panoply of federal, state, and City

         19  regulation governing maintenance of water quality,

         20  water pollution control, abatement of illegal

         21  discharges and appropriate permitting of industrial

         22  waste.  Should SBS inspectors observe an emission

         23  into the water, they lack the technical expertise to

         24  analyze the effluent, determine its hazardous

         25  condition, or to subpoena property owners.
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          2                 SBS inspectors do serve notices of

          3  violation and summonses when conditions warrant or

          4  illegal activity is observed. In fact, through

          5  inspection efforts and working in cooperation with

          6  the office of the Kings County District Attorney

          7  Charles Hynes, several actions have been taken to

          8  improve conditions along Newtown Creek; in recent

          9  weeks abandoned vehicles were removed from the

         10  creek, fencing that had become loose and fallen

         11  partly into the water has been restored; several

         12  companies with barrels of refuse stored near the

         13  water's edge have cleaned up; and other actions are

         14  being pursued.

         15                 The recent indictment by the District

         16  Attorney of a concrete company for polluting the

         17  water and the coordination the D.A. Has established

         18  with several environmental regulatory agencies,

         19  including city agencies, has increased pressure of

         20  companies operating along the waterfront.

         21                 As to loading and unloading

         22  operations, which appear to be a principal concern

         23  of Intro. 581, SBS inspectors have met with two

         24  companies, a gravel operation and an auto recycler

         25  on Newtown Creek, that transfer material on to
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          2  barges.  In these cases, both companies have

          3  provided information that periodic clean up is done

          4  to remove matter that inadvertently falls off of the

          5  barges into the water.  These are active businesses

          6  that have a stake in the community, and we must

          7  ensure that they operate within the law.  Once on

          8  the water, the barges are no longer a subject of

          9  potential SBS jurisdiction, nor is our agency

         10  equipped to sample the water or patrol by boat.

         11                 We agree that these are concerns that

         12  need to be addressed, but believe they can be

         13  accomplished through on- going efforts and

         14  coordination among City agencies.

         15                 Should other methods be necessary, we

         16  would be happy to work with the Committee on it, and

         17  I am here to answer questions along with my

         18  colleagues

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Well, thank you

         20  very much, and I appreciate the- what I take to be

         21  the spirit of wanting to work together to address

         22  this issue, and I would like to do that together

         23  with you.  So, I thank you for that.

         24                 I am left with some questions from

         25  your testimony.
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          2                 First, I just want to understand

          3  about this provision of the Administrative Code that

          4  I read in my statement.            Your statement

          5  says- I just want to give you the exact language,

          6  that it`has been effectively superseded by a panoply

          7  of federal, state, and City regulation.'

          8                 So, let us take the example which one

          9  of the cases that was documented at the last hearing

         10  of a company that is simply releasing industrial

         11  effluent directly into New York Harbor, directly

         12  into Newtown Creek, let us take that example.

         13                 That would appear to me to be covered

         14  under 22- 112. Are you saying that you would not use

         15  that provision to enforce it because there are other

         16  provisions, other City provisions you would use to

         17  enforce- to punish that?  Because you do say it

         18  is`superseded by a panoply of federal, state, and

         19  City regulation', or are you saying that that is not

         20  within the City's purview at all?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         22  Well, I think as you said at the preface of this

         23  hearing, it is a complicated matter involving a

         24  number of agencies at three levels of government.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          3  Now, what I said at the last hearing, when we are

          4  talking about effluent coming in, and what I have

          5  mentioned here today, is the inability of our agency

          6  to effectively analyze some kind of outflow into the

          7  water, like a liquid outflow, that I think involves

          8  a certain amount of analysis, and as demonstrated in

          9  the indictment of the concrete company, I think was

         10  carried out through the coordination with a number

         11  of agencies.  When I say is effectively superseded

         12  because I mean, how are you going to address this

         13  problem in the most effective way?

         14                 Yes, SBS can serve a summons under

         15  the provision of 22- 112 for the kind of minimal

         16  type of fine you indicated, $250, which has to go

         17  into criminal court.  It is a long procedure, where

         18  I think- oh, I mentioned one problem there is

         19  analyzing effluent, and we are not really that type

         20  of environmental body.

         21                 However, we have gone out to Newtown

         22  Creek, as I have indicated, where you have got

         23  actual refuse- type of issues, falling into the

         24  water, which are kind of broad pieces of material

         25  coming in the water.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Right.

          3                 FIRST COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:  And

          4  there we have done what enforcement we can do under

          5  this provision of law, but I do not think that is

          6  the type of comprehensive effective regulation that

          7  you are- you want to look at.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Well, no, that

          9  is a second type of situation we want to address,

         10  and I understand that, but let me just stick on the

         11  effluent one for a minute.

         12                 I understand the DSBS may not really

         13  have the expertise to address that.  In fact, I kind

         14  of would not expect them to really, that is why I

         15  mean, it ought to be in the Department of

         16  Environmental Protection.  But, is it the

         17  Administration position- I am still actually not

         18  totally clear- is the Administrations position that

         19  the best way to handle that case, for example, is

         20  for the district attorney to prosecute because I

         21  feel like that means your either going with a

         22  sledgehammer or you are doing nothing?  There ought

         23  to be administrative penalties somewhere in the

         24  middle, that would more easily implemented.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  I was just going
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          2  to add to that, I am sorry Commissioner.

          3                 Because the old law states, 22- 112,

          4  that correct me if I am wrong, you are supposed to

          5  have the people with the technical expertise to look

          6  into this, to be available for that matter.  So

          7  ergo, is not in compliance with the law or you would

          8  really read it that you did not have to, Small

          9  Business I meant?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         11  No, I think in that section of law, what I am trying

         12  to make clear, is that sometimes determining whether

         13  something, I think, is hazardous.

         14                 I mean again looking at that

         15  provision, you have I think, the word you quoted

         16  was`offal' is in there, which is in the current

         17  provision--.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Which word are

         19  you--?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         21   -- of 22- 112, is 'offal'- o f f a l, which is the

         22  carcass of a slaughtered animal.

         23                 What I am saying is this goes back to

         24  an old time in New York City that you found here.

         25  It is a fairly obscure provision that there are now

                                                            20

          1  SANITATION, WATERFRONTS AND SMALL BUSINESS

          2  laws that are much more detailed in terms- what I am

          3  saying is, this is for vestige from the Department

          4  of Trades, which was not an Environmental Protection

          5  Agency, what was directed at the working waterfront.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I am sorry,

          7  let's just be clear on this because it superseded

          8  by- are there other city regulations that handle

          9  this or not?

         10                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         11  I am going to let Leslie Lipton from DEP address

         12  what they are doing on waterfronts.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, why don't

         14  you come on up?

         15                 MR. LIPTON:  Okay, thank you.

         16                 I think I was brought here today to

         17  talk on behalf of DEP.  I am responsible for a

         18  number of programs which touch on some of the issues

         19  that you are discussing.  You just brought up the

         20  issue of effluent.  We have had a program, and

         21  perhaps you have heard, it is called the Shoreline

         22  Survey Program.  It has also been enhanced since its

         23  inception with the Sentinel Monitoring Program.    Basically

         24  what we have been doing since I believe it is 1988

         25  we started, we have a unit, a shoreline unit, that
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          2  actually goes around the shoreline of the City, and

          3  the function has the responsibility of two things.

          4  Number one, is to characterize the outfalls that

          5  they see.  Are they City- owned, and if so, are they

          6  CSO's, are they storm outfalls, are they directors

          7  charges, are highway?  So, we do all that by boat.

          8  We characterize the outfalls.

          9                 At the same time, obviously since we

         10  are characterizing them, and we are seeing them, we

         11  also look for illegal discharges.

         12                 The example that you brought up,

         13  effluent discharges into Newtown Creek for example,

         14  that is something that we do come across fairly

         15  often, not just in Newtown Creek but throughout the

         16  shoreline of the City, and typically two things will

         17  happen.  Our corp mission, or our jurisdiction

         18  really is the- protecting the collection system of

         19  the City.  So, if there is something coming out

         20  through an outfall, a CSO or storm outfall, that is

         21  our responsibility, and what we do is we will track

         22  down the source, and we will issue an order, and

         23  possibly violations in order to abate that.  We will

         24  do sampling, as well, to see if it is a contaminated

         25  discharge or not.
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          2                 We do come across direct discharges

          3  as well.  When we do come across that, what we

          4  typically will do is we will take a sample but we

          5  will immediately contact DEC because direct

          6  discharge to the water body is DEC's responsibility

          7  and jurisdiction.  We will help them and work with

          8  them, in fact, we have worked with them in Newtown

          9  Creek quite a bit, and particularly with a cement

         10  company.

         11                 So, just to answer your question

         12  about the direct discharge, in the course of our

         13  work the shoreline survey and the Sentinel

         14  monitoring, we will come across those and will

         15  immediately contact DEC, and we will work with them

         16  in abating it, but DEC normally takes the lead on

         17  that.  But as far as indirect discharges, we take

         18  that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, I think I

         20  understand then.

         21                 Your position is that even if this

         22  section of the Administrative Code appears to cover

         23  that kind of direct discharge, we do not as a city

         24  government attempt to enforce it because we see it

         25  as the state DC as the proper enforcement agency.
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          2                 MR. LIPTON:  That is correct.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, and so do

          4  you think DEC is doing a good enough job?

          5                 MR. LIPTON:  Well as I said, we work

          6  with DEC and there have been times when DEC has

          7  asked us to help them.  The problem, of course, is

          8  always resources.  DEC we think does a good job.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I guess the

         10  reason I ask that question is, right, if they are

         11  identifying the violators and punishing them

         12  appropriately, then there is no need for City

         13  enforcement.

         14                 The reason we set down this road in

         15  the first place was a perception that they were not

         16  doing enough for that, and since they have not

         17  responded to our information requests, I do not

         18  really have, frankly, the information to confirm or

         19  disconfirm that suspicion.

         20                 MR. LIPTON:  Right, I guess one thing

         21  I want to make clear is that, obviously, when we are

         22  out there, if our unit is out there and they see a

         23  discharge, and we contact DEC, obviously because of

         24  the time to respond for DEC, whether it is an hour

         25  or five hours or whatever it happens to be, since
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          2  our people are out there, I think what makes the

          3  most sense is that we do something, and we will

          4  explain to DEC and keep them aware of what we are

          5  doing.

          6                 Oftentimes, they will say, "please

          7  keep doing it, you are out there, go ahead and do

          8  it."  And we will often, not often, we will

          9  sometimes issue orders, one of our orders to the

         10  company that has got the direct discharge.  To my

         11  recollection, we have not been challenged on that,

         12  as far our jurisdiction.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I am sorry, this

         14  is and I know Council Member Gennaro, just bear with

         15  me one more minute because this is very interesting.

         16                 So I am sorry, you said sometimes you

         17  do issue an order to a company that is directly

         18  releasing into the harbor.

         19                 MR. LIPTON:  We will do it on behalf

         20  of DEC.  DEC said, "while you are there, we want to

         21  abate this as soon as we can, rather than waiting

         22  for us, can you do something?"

         23                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I see.

         24                 What does the order say?  In other

         25  words, what does the order say?
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          2                 MR. LIPTON:  The order, depending on

          3  what the problem is, what we normally come across

          4  is, most frequently, is an illegal connection to a

          5  storm sewer, for example.  That is easy. We issue

          6  them an order that says,`you have to immediately

          7  stop discharging, for example, sanitary waste water

          8  to the storm, and abate it.'  Meaning; reconnect.

          9  And that is the easy case.

         10                 Where we come across a direct

         11  discharge, because our orders cite the 24- 5/24/F of

         12  the Administrative Code, which is enforcing the

         13  sewer use regulations.  Since that would not be

         14  going through the collection system or the sewer

         15  system, we really do not have that jurisdiction.

         16                 However, when a company gets an order

         17  from us, we find more often than not they know they

         18  have to fix it, and if they do not, either DC will

         19  step in or further action will take place. So we

         20  found, more often than not, cooperation.  But, not

         21  always, and DEC will have to step in and take over.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  How many of

         23  those types of orders would you say you have issued

         24  in the last year or two years?               In

         25  other words, for direct release of effluent into the
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          2  harbor?

          3                 MR. LIPTON:  I would say not very

          4  many.  We have issued numerous ones for indirect

          5  discharge, illegal connections to the storm sewer

          6  for example.  That is the bulk of our orders.  We

          7  have done an occasional direct discharge.

          8                 I will give you just a quick example.

          9    We were in the, I think, it was the Rockaways, and

         10  we were doing one of our source trackdowns of

         11  illegal hookups to storm sewers.  In the course of

         12  doing that, we found a home, and the home had a pipe

         13  running, I guess it was directly from their septic

         14  system into the receiving water.  Well, while we

         15  were there we said,`we are not going to keep moving

         16  on, let's talk to the homeowner, tell them what is

         17  wrong, and we did that.'  We issued them an order,

         18  we told DEC at the same time, they thanked us for

         19  doing it.  The problem was resolved within three

         20  days.  They hired a plumber, and that was the end of

         21  it.

         22                 So, where we can do it, and it makes

         23  sense, we do it but again, our basic focus is

         24  illegal connections to storm sewers, and we have

         25  quite a few of those and it keeps our people pretty
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          2  busy.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER YASSKY:  Thank you, I

          4  know Chair Gennaro, you have questions.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Thank you,

          6  thank you Chairman Yassky.

          7                 I guess I am just trying on one point

          8  sort of stay focused, and the purpose of the hearing

          9  we are talking about the dumping, not point sources

         10  from any kind of pipe or whatever, and that is a

         11  good topic to talk about but not the topic for

         12  today.

         13                 We are talking about effluent, and

         14  that kind of thing.  We are getting a little a feel,

         15  I would like to focus on dumping, and I guess for

         16  Mr. Lipton, always a pleasure to see you, and the

         17  good folks from DEP, but I think I would like to ask

         18  a question of Mr. Milora of the Department of

         19  Sanitation.  In that, when people think about

         20  illegal dumping, they think about the Department of

         21  Sanitation and their jurisdiction and I know, based

         22  on my work, on the Sanitation Committee and my years

         23  as an analyst for the Council, dealing on sanitation

         24  issues.

         25                 There have been different task forces
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          2  and things and they set out to, sort of, go after

          3  illegal dumping, and like a bounty program, and

          4  various things that have been put forward for to

          5  kind of help with the scourge of illegal dumping,

          6  and to what extent- and if this has been asked

          7  already, I apologize, I have been having some

          8  conversations trying to focus myself.

          9                 But to what extent does the

         10  Department of Sanitation recognize waterfront

         11  illegal dumping as an issue, and what specific

         12  actions have they taken to focus on it, deal with

         13  it, or how does this work?

         14                 MR. MILORA:  Well, quite frankly, we

         15  have about 60 police officers that are dedicated to

         16  illegal dumping.  We do, roughly, between 250 to 300

         17  pounds a year for people who illegally dump in New

         18  York City.

         19                 We do not really see- if we did see

         20  someone dumping directly into the water, we would

         21  impound the vehicle, and we would immediately notify

         22  the Department of Environmental Conservation. We do

         23  not see that happening too often.  I mean, a lot of

         24  our time, a lot of our officers spend most of their

         25  time in heavy industrialized areas where illegal
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          2  dumping is prevalent, and that is usually along the

          3  waterways.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Along the

          5  waterways, but not into the waterways?

          6                 MR. MILORA:  Well, in the areas, not

          7  into the waterways along areas where there is a

          8  large waterfront because there is a lot of

          9  industrial property.

         10                 We do not find too many people- we

         11  get a few complaints about people dumping directly

         12  into a waterway, and over the past five or six

         13  years, it has been minimal what we have found.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Let me kind of

         15  probe that a little more.

         16                 The people in the Department, this is

         17  a core of about sixty officers, and that is like

         18  what they do, right, so any kind of tips, any kind

         19  of information which is brought forward about

         20  illegal dumping, that comes to the attention of the

         21  Department of Sanitation would like, go to this

         22  unit, right, and so they would be aware of illegal

         23  dumping complaints, and presumably there are

         24  favorite locations where people like to dump and you

         25  kind of like know your`hot spots', so to speak,
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          2  where people who may be tempted to dump, where they

          3  would do it, and that kind of thing. And as you look

          4  at those hot spots, and the whole landscape of

          5  people who dump illegally, is it your testimony that

          6  most dumpers would focus on, sort of, land- based

          7  places to like dump their stuff, and this does not

          8  minimize of course what would happen in the

          9  waterways because if they are dumping something into

         10  the waterway, I mean, what that would mean but what

         11  is your general sense of- is there sort of like a

         12  waterfront dumping hot spot, where people would go

         13  to?

         14                 MR. MILORA:  Well, I certainly do not

         15  believe that there is.  I mean, we spend a lot of

         16  our time- one of the units that I run is the

         17  Transfer Station Police Force, which is the permit

         18  inspection unit, and we spend a lot of time in

         19  Williamsburg, Greene Point and on the Queens side of

         20  Newtown Creek.  We are in there virtually every day.

         21    We do not receive many complaints about trucks

         22  dumping directly into the water.

         23                 Most of our impounds, if not all of

         24  the impounds relate to people dumping primarily on

         25  land, and again, we do not receive many complaints.
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          2  Certainly, if we received a complaint about an area

          3  where people were dumping directly into the

          4  waterway, we would prioritize that, look at it, and

          5  we would servile the area so, it is my testimony

          6  that we do not see it happening very frequently, and

          7  we certainly have not gotten many complaints on

          8  people directly dumping from vehicles into a water

          9  body.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Right, okay but

         11  let me just follow up a little bit.

         12                 You have- sometimes when you think

         13  about an illegal dumper, you think of somebody

         14  through truck, car, or whatever kind of conveyance

         15  they have, are going to some location, separate from

         16  where they ordinarily operate.  Whatever kind of

         17  business they are in, they do their business

         18  wherever they do it, and then they take the vehicle

         19  to some quiet place to dump.

         20                 However, presumably, if you had

         21  waterfront businesses, who part of their regular

         22  operation, right off the back of where they are

         23  located, maybe they have like a discharge permit for

         24  their liquid effluent or whatever, and they have the

         25  appropriate permits for that, but they also have
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          2  some solid material, or some other miscellaneous

          3  liquid wastes that are just kind of making their way

          4  into the water as kind of like, the part of the way

          5  that they do business or whatever, would that kind

          6  of activity fall under your jurisdiction?

          7                 MR. MILORA:  Not necessarily, no.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON GENNARO:  Okay, is there

          9  anyone here at the panel who- with that kind of

         10  activity, would fall on their jurisdiction?

         11                 You are a business, you have got a

         12  permanent outfall, so you are discharging into the

         13  waterway but there is anecdotal and incidental solid

         14  waste, and some liquid waste that are also, sort of

         15  like, going over the bulkhead into the water. They

         16  have got their permitted discharge, but then they

         17  got other stuff just making its way into the water.

         18  You know, a couple of tires here and there, and this

         19  and that, or whatever, and oil and a couple of drums

         20  of things or whatever, who's jurisdiction would that

         21  be?  Permitted discharge, and also illegal dumping,

         22  you know sort of, incidental illegal dumping of,

         23  whether liquid or of solid waster, who would have

         24  that?

         25                 MR. MILORA:  My only experience from
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          2  the Department of Sanitation, has been with getting

          3  any report about stuff falling into a waterway.  I

          4  think, two or three years ago we received a report,

          5  and I think it was based on a siting by Riverkeeper

          6  about, I think it was a lumber company operating on

          7  Newtown Creek where it appeared some gravel or stone

          8  was falling into the waterway, and we sent out

          9  officers to just tell them to, "hey, try to move the

         10  stuff back off the water."  Other than that, we have

         11  had no dealings with that.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Okay, so

         13  that is your statement on it, but generally, who's

         14  responsibility if anyone's, in City government,

         15  would that be?  Permitted, legal discharges and you

         16  know, incidental solid and liquid material, not

         17  through the permitted outfall, just going into the

         18  water.  Anyone want that one?

         19                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         20  From our perspective, Council member, it would come

         21  under this provision of the Administrative Code.  We

         22  have also received no complaints.  I mean, it is an

         23  area we can serve a summons for but, again, the

         24  effectiveness of that in the overall regulatory--.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Right, how
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          2  about DEP's statement on that?  Leslie?

          3                 MR. LIPTON:  Yes, I guess it goes to

          4  what I was saying before, we--.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Could you

          6  speak right into the mic, it would be better.

          7                 MR. LIPTON:  Okay sure.  What happens

          8  is, under your scenario where it is a permitted

          9  outfall, permitted, it has its own SPDES permit.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Right.

         11                 MR. LIPTON:  Obviously, that is

         12  regulated by DEC, and they have sampling

         13  requirements, monitoring requirements that they have

         14  to fulfill, and limits to meet.

         15                 If our shoreline people were in the

         16  course of their inspections, were to see that,

         17  again, we would immediately contact DEC and say, "we

         18  see a direct discharge", whether it is going through

         19  an outfall or just a run off.  So, that is something

         20  that we would refer immediately to DEC.

         21                 We also have come across, obviously,

         22  in the course over all these years, where we see

         23  evidence of a discharge into the waterway.  We also

         24  notify the U. S. Coast Guard to respond as well.   We

         25  have seen quite a few oil spills, oil slicks, and
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          2  the U. S. Coast Guard will always respond to that.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  And you had

          4  mentioned earlier in one of your responses, Mr.

          5  Lipton, about the shoreline survey and the shoreline

          6  unit that goes and does that.

          7                 How big is that unit, and how does--?

          8                 MR. LIPTON:  Currently, there is five

          9  people in that unit, and just to clarify what they

         10  do besides the shoreline

         11  survey --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Right.

         13                 MR. LIPTON:  I also mentioned the

         14  Sentinel monitoring.  I do not think I really

         15  described that.  I will do it very quickly for you.

         16                 One of the things that they are

         17  required- that we are required to do, its in our

         18  SPDES permit, there are 80 Sentinel Monitoring

         19  Stations, those are ambient monitoring stations out

         20  in the waterway, and it is done by GPS,

         21  latitude/longitude.  We are required to sample each

         22  of those 80 stations every quarter.

         23                 So, our people are doing that, they

         24  have to accomplish that, and at the same time, do

         25  the shoreline to characterize the outfalls.  So,
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          2  they are kept pretty busy, these five people.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  And they

          4  would have to physically interact with one of these

          5  monitors out in the water to get the data from?

          6                 MR. LIPTON:  Yes, actually there is

          7  nothing out there.  They will just go with their GPS

          8  and say--.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Oh, I see,

         10  fine.

         11                 MR. LIPTON: -- "it is time to take a

         12  sample."

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  So they just

         14  have to go to a precise location?

         15                 MR. LIPTON:  And the point of that

         16  is, they will take the sample, we will bring it back

         17  to our lab and there are baselines set for each

         18  monitoring station.

         19                 So for example, it is fecal, the

         20  fecal coliform baseline.  So, if at the station S32

         21  in Newtown Creek for example, if we find a baseline

         22  is 200 MPN, and we get 400--.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Right.

         24                 MR. LIPTON:  We are then required to

         25  do a little mini- shoreline trackdown- where is it

                                                            37

          1  SANITATION, WATERFRONTS AND SMALL BUSINESS

          2  coming from?

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Okay.

          4                 MR. LIPTON:  We will go up and down

          5  the shoreline looking for discharges.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Okay, and at

          7  the risk of giving myself just like a small bit of

          8  latitude here, with respect to- and if I can just

          9  indulge the Chair because this is not about, sort

         10  of, point source, effluent discharges but in the

         11  course of doing the shoreline survey, is there an

         12  attempt by the shoreline unit to, sort of, take note

         13  of the various point source, outfall pipes from

         14  businesses or whatever, and some attempt to make

         15  sure that they indeed have a permit or whatever, or

         16  that just making a record of them, and then a

         17  reconciliation with XYZ address, they actually have

         18  an outfall, we see stuff coming out of it, do they

         19  have a permit, or whatever, like that kind of thing.

         20    Is that part of their function?

         21                 MR. LIPTON:  Yes it is.  Part of

         22  their function is, as I said, to characterize all

         23  the outfalls, there is over 4,000 along the

         24  shoreline of all various types.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Yes.
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          2                 MR. LIPTON:  Where we come across an

          3  outfall that we do not have listed, we will attempt

          4  to find out what it is.

          5                 Is it direct discharge, obviously, if

          6  there is wastewater coming out of it, we would look

          7  to see what it is.  If we see a cement company

          8  there, well obviously, it is from there, and we

          9  would check with DEC, do they have a permit?

         10                 If not, we would refer it to them and

         11  DEC --

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER GENNARO:  Okay, again,

         13  this hearing is not about that but I thought I would

         14  take the opportunity just to pose that question.

         15                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you, that

         17  was very enlightening.

         18                 Chair Nelson.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Thank you.

         20                 Is there any intergovernmental

         21  cooperation or record keeping?

         22                 Let's say something is cited or it is

         23  passed onto the Coast Guard, I would guess that

         24  there is no follow up, there is nothing like, "Okay,

         25  did you catch those guys?  In fact, where they doing

                                                            39

          1  SANITATION, WATERFRONTS AND SMALL BUSINESS

          2  something illegal?"  If you get in touch with them

          3  or if the Coast Guard calls back and says, "oh by

          4  the way, about that tip that you gave us?"

          5                 Is there any of this give and take?

          6                 MR. LIPTON:  There is, when it

          7  involves, typically, the Coast Guard, usually we

          8  will know what is happening because we also have an

          9  emergency response unit, for example, if there is a

         10  spill, and it gets onto the waterway and we notify

         11  the Coast Guard.

         12                 Typically, our emergency response

         13  engineer will stick around, and while the Coast

         14  Guard is remediating the site or having the company,

         15  the responsible party, remediated, normally our

         16  engineer will stay there just to see what is

         17  happening, and whether there is any impact on the

         18  sewer system, if there is a storm drain or something

         19  that will be impacted, so yes, in that case we

         20  would.

         21                 In the case of referring a direct

         22  discharge, to be honest with you, what we will

         23  normally do is we will refer that to DEC, and leave

         24  that for them to follow up.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  And the state
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          2  and the city do not compare notes afterwards?

          3                 MR. LIPTON:  Well, they are an

          4  oversight, of really, our program and they certainly

          5  follow up on what we do.

          6                 We report to them, we have very

          7  strict guidelines as to reporting times and

          8  responses.  We must let them know when it is abated,

          9  we have written correspondence that goes to them.  I

         10  believe it is within five days of the abatement.

         11                 So, they are certainly kept abreast

         12  of what we have done, and when we abated.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Okay, and just

         14  to jump to one other thing.

         15                 As far as Intro. 500, which would

         16  increase the amount of the penalties, I want to get

         17  your opinion on this.  By the way, I mean it could

         18  be a million dollars, the penalty, if there is not

         19  enough enforcement, it is superfluous.

         20                 But, your opinion on the amount of

         21  the increase in fines, do you think it is too much,

         22  or too little, or what have you, or have the time to

         23  look into it?

         24                 MR. SCHWARTZ:  I do not think we have

         25  fully evaluated the amounts in there.  Because,
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          2  normally you are going to go before a judge, who is

          3  going to set it somewhere probably in there, but if

          4  you were going to use this provision of law to get

          5  at this problem, you should increase the fines, yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Good, and just

          7  one other thing too.

          8                 This has been bandied about I am sure

          9  before I became chair of the Small Business

         10  Committee.  The use of cameras, or infrared for

         11  night time, that gets a positive response, it seems

         12  to be a frustration of so many people that there are

         13  not enough of them, and I could be wrong, maybe

         14  there is one at every underpass for all I know.

         15  But, there is probably not that many.

         16                 Is it on the drawing board?  Given

         17  the bountiful lack of money we may be looking at in

         18  the near future in the budget, but still, is there a

         19  plan for that at all, more cameras, and infrared?

         20                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         21  Well again, at the risk of being slightly off topic,

         22  what we traditionally have done as part of the

         23  industrial pre- treatment program, where we regulate

         24  certain industry, we do regular inspections,

         25  obviously. We also do stakeouts.  We have also do
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          2  surreptitious monitoring.

          3                 Now again, this is dealing with the

          4  sewer system, and what we have done is we have

          5  placed, what are known as ORP Monitors, Oxidation

          6  Reduction Potentiometers.  What those are are

          7  instruments that we place into the sewer system, and

          8  it is really to detect the midnight dumpers, and

          9  what it does is, if it detects a metal for example,

         10  let us say lead being discharged at 12 o'clock

         11  midnight, a reading will occur.  It will not tell us

         12  the level, it will tell us it is high/abnormal, so

         13  then, we will know based on where we have placed

         14  them, where the sewer system is that there is a

         15  problem, and then we can follow it up.

         16                 So, we have done from the industrial

         17  pre- treatment point of view, we have done that over

         18  the years.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Oh good, okay,

         20  because catching a couple of these culprits would do

         21  more than pay for, I am sure, the equipment itself,

         22  if we were successful with that.

         23                 I will defer another question because

         24  I know that my Co- Chair wants to move on with

         25  another issue.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Go right a head.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  The only thing

          4  is that I was going to go into 581, just touch upon

          5  that.

          6                 Again, it would create a plan to

          7  combat this illegal dumping.  I know you have

          8  problems with that.

          9                 If you can come out with specifics on

         10  that, and then maybe some bullets or obviously, even

         11  you can amplify them as well, so we can look into

         12  that and maybe come into some more of a common

         13  ground, if possible, because it looks like a maybe a

         14  solution to get, again, the Department of Small

         15  Business Services, and I understand, again, this is

         16  not as- eluding to what my colleague David Yassky

         17  said.  It is not the Administration doing something

         18  wrong, and I understand that no agency by and large,

         19  wants to assume greater responsibilities when they

         20  are being told to cut the budget.  I do understand

         21  that, but maybe we could work out where the budget

         22  should be cut, for the greater good of the entire

         23  population of the City.

         24                 If you want to address that at all,

         25  or just get back as far as what you feel might be
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          2  some way to resolve this?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          4  Council member, I think we would look into getting

          5  back to you on specifics in that provision of law.

          6                 I do not think, again, our concern is

          7  not necessarily what the budget cuts to our agency

          8  on this, but whether it is the appropriate way to go

          9  given- will there be coming some type of alternate

         10  environmental protection agency here, and have to

         11  provide the resources, the boats, and everything

         12  else, the analysis to go along with that.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  I know, given

         14  587 miles of shoreline, it is a large task as well.

         15  But again, it may go into a multi- agency task force

         16  or something.

         17                 Okay, okay, thank you David.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you.

         19                 Council Member Brewer.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Thank you

         21  very much.

         22                 I have a 311 question, in the sense

         23  that, do residents call 311 to report problems, and

         24  then I want to know if that information is tracked?

         25  Is it shared with city or state agencies?  And then
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          2  of course, which city agency is the problem referred

          3  to?  And is there an established city protocol and

          4  do you have Legacy Systems at SBS, or DOB, and my

          5  other reason for asking this is a little sneaky,

          6  which is, we have a bill which my friend Gino

          7  Menchini is not too happy with, which would say that

          8  the community boards need to have some of this 311

          9  information so that they can plan?

         10                 So, I am asking you for my own

         11  reasons, but also to find out how does it work in

         12  terms of protocol in this situation? So, what

         13  happens if I dial 311 when I see something?

         14                 MR. MILORA:  Well certainly, the

         15  Department of Sanitation if we receive a call from

         16  311 on a complaint, we would aggressively look at

         17  it.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Yes, but how

         19  would the operator at 311- I know 311 very well.

         20                 Now would the operator, the 311

         21  person know to go to DOS?

         22                 MR. MILORA:  Well, I guess it is

         23  contingent upon what was exactly reported.  What the

         24  description of the violation was.  If somebody

         25  called up and said, "there is a truck dumping into
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          2  the waterway", I believe that they would know to

          3  call us.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, do you

          5  agree Andrew?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          7  Well yes, certainly, we are going through our own

          8  very detailed analysis

          9  with 311.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I know you

         11  are.

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         13  We have our own call center, they are looking into

         14  that and trying to come up with a--.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Yes, Legacy

         16  System.

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         18  Correct, all the appropriate key words, and it is a

         19  pretty intensive effort and frankly, I do not know

         20  where it is right now on that issue, but I will look

         21  into it.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, because

         23  it would be nice to know also, this is a perfect

         24  example of the kind of information that a community

         25  board would be interested in also, so that they
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          2  could monitor the situation.  Because to me, it is

          3  not just the call and fixing it, and knowing which

          4  person it goes to, which is, I think, right now it

          5  may not be clear to the operator but also this is

          6  information that needs to be transferred down to the

          7  community level.

          8                 So, what you are saying now is that,

          9  depending on the kind of issue that seems to be

         10  before the person who is making the report, you feel

         11  it could be correctly tracked?

         12                 How about state or off- state, sort

         13  of quasi- state agencies like the Port Authority?

         14                 How would one know where to track

         15  this, is what I am trying to say, that is 311?

         16                 MR. LIPTON:  Just from DEP's point of

         17  view, calls get routed through our communications

         18  center, there are certain- we have people who are

         19  manning that who know where to send complaints.  So

         20  if for example, if it is a truck dumping, or a

         21  cement company washing their truck out, going into a

         22  catch basin, that goes through our Hanson (phonetic)

         23  System which is all tracked.  311 enters the data,

         24  and then when our response engineer gets that

         25  complaint, they will respond.
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          2                 Depending on the type of complaint,

          3  there are different metrics as to how quickly they

          4  have to respond.  But that is all- gets recorded in

          5  our Hanson System, our computer data base, and when

          6  the case is closed out, well first of all, the

          7  caller of course, as you know, probably gets a

          8  complaint number.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right.

         10                 MR. LIPTON:  So they will be able to

         11  track that complaint number.  When we close that

         12  case out, we will enter it into the computer system

         13  so that that now can be tracked that it was closed

         14  out.  We know it has been closed out.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay, all

         16  right.  It has happened that in some cases, not

         17  dumping, but in general, there is still some

         18  confusion as to how problems get ironed out, and I

         19  just suggest, this might be an example where you

         20  might want to look closely as you are changing how

         21  you do the protocols, making sure 311 is on top of

         22  it.

         23                 It does not always work perfectly,

         24  and it needs some attention.

         25                 Thank you, Mr. Chair.

                                                            49

          1  SANITATION, WATERFRONTS AND SMALL BUSINESS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Council Member

          3  Gioia.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  I will be very

          5  brief, and let me apologize.  I was not here when

          6  you testified, so you may have answered these

          7  questions already.

          8                 Do you know how many complaints we

          9  have received last year for dumping, illegal dumping

         10  in the waterways?

         11                 Have you answered that already?

         12                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         13  I think in the letter that was sent back to the

         14  Committee, all the agencies indicated what they had

         15  received.  We, to my knowledge other than the issues

         16  brought to us by Riverkeeper, had not received any

         17  complaints.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  If a citizen

         19  wanted to find out how many- well, let me ask you-

         20  how many tickets have been written, or fines, or

         21  people actually have found to have illegally dumped

         22  in New York City last year?  Do you know that

         23  answer?

         24                 MR. MILORA:  I would have to get back

         25  to you on the exact number of tickets.  I know we
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          2  impounded roughly 250 vehicles for the year, and

          3  some of those impounds require there to be several

          4  violations for each impound.

          5                 So, the number probably exceeds that

          6  considerably.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I am sorry, I

          8  just want to clarify.

          9                 You are referring to illegal dumping

         10  period, right? That is not restricted to waterways?

         11                 MR. MILORA:  Yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I just wanted to

         13  be clear because I was not sure if that was--.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Thank you,

         15  yes.

         16                 Let me ask my third question, and

         17  then I will get to the point of what I am really

         18  trying to find out.

         19                 If a average citizen wanted to find

         20  out how many cars were stolen in Woodside last

         21  month, and I actually have not checked on- line, so

         22  I do not know the answer to that but you can find

         23  out how many cars were stolen in Woodside last

         24  month, by just simply logging on the Internet and

         25  getting the comstat numbers.
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          2                 If I wanted to find how many reported

          3  dumpings there were, and then how many reported

          4  people were caught and ticketed, could I find that

          5  out easily on- line?  If so, where?

          6                 MR. MILORA:  At our agency as far as

          7  the summonses go, I do not think we have that

          8  information on line.

          9                 There is information in the Mayor's

         10  Management Report on summonses issued by this unit.

         11  But, we could get more specific information for you

         12  or anybody who inquires on it.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Well, it is

         14  part of what I see as a transparent government, I

         15  think, is probably the best government in that it

         16  gives people confidence that their questions can be

         17  answered.  And while I am certain that the

         18  information is available in the Mayor's Management

         19  Report, it should not be like trying to find a

         20  needle in a haystack to get answers to your

         21  questions.

         22                 And so, what I would suggest is that

         23  you should be able to look on- line and find out how

         24  many reports there have been, how many people have

         25  been caught, and how many tickets there have been,
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          2  and what have they been for.

          3                 In other words, all the information

          4  that is legally appropriate to share.  I mean

          5  obviously, you cannot share everything but, anything

          6  that is legally appropriate to share should be

          7  public, and there is no reason not to keep it

          8  public.

          9                 I think then what you do is, you

         10  actually empower all citizens.  You know, one of the

         11  complaints I get- people say, "well you know", and I

         12  say, "well, did you call and report the dumping?"

         13  They say, "well, no one is going to do anything

         14  about it."

         15                 I think when you actually make it a

         16  transparent government, and give people confidence

         17  that someone is actually going to do something about

         18  it, and we are going to give you this report card

         19  every single month to show you that we did something

         20  about it, it gives people confidence, and it also

         21  becomes a mechanism that people, like I said, is a

         22  report card, so you see how people are doing and it

         23  does ensure compliance, and it gives us an idea how

         24  well we are doing over a period of time.

         25                 MR. MILORA:  Well, let me just
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          2  clarify.

          3                 With the Department of Sanitation, we

          4  have an aggressive illegal dumping program, and we

          5  keep track of all complaints, and we respond very

          6  quickly.

          7                 Like I said, we impound roughly

          8  between 250 and 300 vehicles a year.  We are very

          9  responsive to complaints.  We will send out somebody

         10  immediately, once a violation is reported or we

         11  receive a complaint.

         12                 Additionally, there is a program for

         13  citizens to- a TIPS Program- where if they give us

         14  the number of a vehicle, if it is observed dumping,

         15  we will follow up, and they would be subject to

         16  getting some kind of monetary reward for reporting

         17  the dumping.  I think it is well publicized.  I

         18  think we are very aggressive when it comes to

         19  illegal dumping, and we certainly open to complaints

         20  about it.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Thank you, I

         22  did not mean to cut you off.  I am sorry.

         23                 I am glad you brought up the TIPS

         24  Program.  Do you know how many people; A. Tipped, B.

         25  Actually resulted in a fine or I guess impounding a
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          2  car, and then how much money was given to

          3  the tipees?

          4                 MR. MILORA:  That is numbers I would

          5  have to check. Just so you know, the minimum fine

          6  for illegal dumping is $1,500, that fine goes up to

          7  $20,000.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  And so, what I

          9  think it would be a wonderful incentive if you told

         10  me right now, "well yes, we got this guy and he, the

         11  tipee, he saw someone dump, he called us up, we

         12  caught him, we caught the dumper, and we paid the

         13  tipee." I do not know, how much would you pay the

         14  tipee?

         15                 MR. MILORA:  That information, I am

         16  certain we have it, and I would just have to get it,

         17  it is something that we do maintain and we do keep.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Yes, because

         19  my concern is right, and this is my concern, it is a

         20  larger concern about what we do, in that we come up

         21  with a good plan, we write a good law, the TIPS

         22  Program being an example, but frankly, I do not know

         23  much about it, the people I represent do not know

         24  much about it, and the information is not readily

         25  available.
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          2                 In other words, I would suggest that

          3  you should be able to log onto the website and find

          4  out, that we have received 100 tips, they have

          5  resulted in 70 fines, impoundings, arrests,

          6  whatever, then the third part would be generating $3

          7  million in revenues for the City, and the tipees

          8  have gotten $100,000. Because by the way, what an

          9  incentive, right?  I mean not only would we show

         10  that government works better, but we would be

         11  deputizing 8 million New Yorkers to go out there and

         12  be advocates and protectors of the environment.

         13                 MR. MILORA:  Well, speaking of the

         14  website, I think there is information contained on

         15  the website about illegal dumping and what to do,

         16  and how to report it.  And I think we also put out

         17  many press releases regarding the illegal dumping

         18  program.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Yes.

         20                 MR. MILORA:  And I think our

         21  effectiveness in combating illegal dumping is also

         22  seen in our street cleanliness scorecard numbers

         23  which, I think, have gone up dramatically, and have

         24  stood pretty high.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  And that is
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          2  fair enough, but what I am suggesting though is that

          3  someone mentioned metrics, I mean, that is what it

          4  is about to me, in that it is about month by month

          5  looking at the numbers, and saying to somebody who

          6  will report it, "this is what happened, and this is

          7  the result", and then tracking those numbers.

          8                 It is just like any other business,

          9  my folks run a little flower shop on Roosevelt

         10  Avenue, they are not very complex, they barely use

         11  computers, but they can tell you how much money they

         12  made every single week, and they can tell you that

         13  for the past 75 years.  And so, you look at it and

         14  say, "it is going up, it is going down", you compare

         15  it year to year, and that is the sort of data that,

         16  number one, I assume you actually have, and

         17  internally you manage because that is just

         18  Management 101.  There is nothing genius about that,

         19  so I assume that information is available somewhere

         20  in the agency but what I am suggesting is that this

         21  is the type of information that as a public entity,

         22  as a government, that we make widely available so

         23  that all of New Yorkers can see them, and be a judge

         24  for themselves.

         25                 In that way, they can make
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          2  suggestions and improvements.

          3                 MR. MILORA:  Certainly we will note

          4  it.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER GIOIA:  Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you, oh,

          7  Council Member Nelson, yes?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Right, just

          9  something very brief to add on to- I appreciate you

         10  brought out how some of the law as far as 22- 112

         11  was sort of like an agonistic, so that is one of the

         12  more reasons also to change it as well as it would

         13  fit into today's society as well.

         14                 I just want to address one thing,

         15  last thing in this area I would guess, is as far as

         16  the dockmasters go, throughout the City for the 587

         17  miles of waterway, if you will, there is two

         18  dockmasters and there is no boat for them, if I am

         19  reading this correctly, and do you think it is

         20  better if they drive around, which is possible,

         21  honestly, I do not know which is better but I would

         22  think perhaps in a boat at sometimes it might be

         23  more useful.

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         25  Well, in answer to that, there are three with
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          2  enforcement, summons issuing ability, yes, and law

          3  enforcement.  They have access to boats when needed,

          4  not through the agency but basically what I am

          5  saying, they are property related issues that they

          6  are primarily dealing with, related to construction,

          7  permitting, unsafe conditions, which are land- based

          8  conditions, that is what I am trying to draw the

          9  distinction from but they have worked with the

         10  Police Department on boats, the EDC, the DCAS, in

         11  terms of looking into specific conditions.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Oh, so when a

         13  boat is needed it is there with the DEP or PD or

         14  what have you?

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         16  The various agencies, right.  Remember, a lot of the

         17  property along the waterfront is city- owned, and a

         18  lot of other structures are under DOB jurisdiction,

         19  again, residential on the waterfront.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  And Feds in some

         21  cases too?

         22                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         23  Yes.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Wetlands, what

         25  have you.

                                                            59

          1  SANITATION, WATERFRONTS AND SMALL BUSINESS

          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          3  Certainly.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  And state in

          5  some cases?

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          7  Yes, you have Gateway Park, Staten Island, yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Okay, so do you

          9  think there might be a need to have a few more

         10  dockmasters?

         11                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         12  Again, this is an area that I mentioned in my

         13  testimony.

         14                 We believe the whole waterfront

         15  permit section should be working with DOB closer,

         16  and possibly transferred there for jurisdiction so

         17  there is one stop shopping for people doing

         18  construction on the waterfront.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  And there are

         20  three not two then?

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         22  Three with the ability to issue summonses, yes.  It

         23  is a supervisor and two inspectors.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Okay, thank you

         25  for the elucidation.
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          2                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          3  All right, thanks.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Can I ask you a

          5  question?

          6                 What are the dockmasters

          7  responsibilities?

          8                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          9  Well as I say, primarily it is inspection.

         10  Inspection for unsafe, hazardous conditions.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Of piers,

         12  bulkheads, et cetera.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         14  Yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Are there

         16  responsibilities beyond that?

         17                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         18  In terms of?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I do not mean

         20  that as a trick question.  I just mean is there--.

         21                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         22  There is

         23  plenty- as Councilman Nelson noted the miles of

         24  waterfront and area to be inspected is sufficient.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes that is
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          2  plenty, okay, because that function does strike me

          3  as a function that is similar to what the Department

          4  of Buildings does, it inspects the adequacy of built

          5  structures.  That I understand.

          6                 What, I guess, has been the subject

          7  of the hearing is whether, and you have been, I

          8  think, fairly clear, that they do not also have an

          9  anti- pollution function.  And you have said, Mr.

         10  Schwartz, that there is not a- that DSBS as an

         11  agency, it is not the mission, anti- pollution is

         12  not the mission of the agency, you do not have the

         13  expertise, I am not trying to be tendentious about

         14  it, that is right you said we have the expertise to

         15  analyze effluent to determine if it is harmful or

         16  not.  I get that.  The question is, you know, is

         17  there a need for that function, and if so, where

         18  should it be?

         19                 Now, if I understand it, you are

         20  saying that DEP actually, as a matter of practice,

         21  does from time to time perform that function as a

         22  adjunct to the state Department of Environmental

         23  Conservation, and I guess my question is why should

         24  not you have the direct enforcement authority to

         25  exercise, if it is simply convenient to do so
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          2  because you are out there, and DEC is not, or if it

          3  is necessary to do so because DEC is not doing what

          4  we need it to do?  Should not you have that

          5  authority?

          6                 MR. LIPTON:  Well of course, we are-

          7  our focus is the water quality, and our

          8  jurisdiction, as I said, is the collection system of

          9  the city- owned outfalls, the treatment plants.    I

         10  mentioned before we have five people doing the

         11  shoreline survey.  In some ways, of course, it

         12  always comes down to a matter of resources and

         13  performing all the required things that we have to

         14  do, and these are things required of both the

         15  federal government and the state, so, the people

         16  that we have doing the work that we are doing are

         17  pretty busy all year round.

         18                 Where this jurisdiction should lie,

         19  of course, I will leave to your expertise.  I am not

         20  sure of the answer to that.             I think

         21  there is some overlap between the different

         22  agencies, and I am not sure what the best way is to

         23  handle that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay, when you

         25  issue an order, kind of on behalf of DEC, where you
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          2  find a direct release of effluent, has it been your

          3  experience that there is follow up from DEC?

          4                 MR. MILORA:  I think that I had

          5  mentioned earlier that we will sometimes know that

          6  DEC followed up on it. Oftentimes, we will refer

          7  that to them, and then move on to completing our

          8  functions.

          9                 To be honest with you, we do not

         10  always know what- how it ended with DEC.  Sometimes

         11  we will know because some of the referrals we have

         12  made have resulted in criminal matters, and of

         13  course, we will know about that.  There have been

         14  times when our inspectors have had to testify.

         15  Those we will clearly know the outcome of.  But to

         16  be frank with you, we do not always know how DEC--.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Do not know,

         18  okay, it makes sense, you know you are two different

         19  agencies.  Why would you, okay.

         20                 This is just my last question.  Why

         21  would it be- you have said Mr. Schwartz that you

         22  thought that penalties under 22- 11 (sic) would be

         23  returnable at a criminal court rather than

         24  to the ECB.

         25                 Why wouldn't this be a DEC- a fine
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          2  like any other fine that the City issues?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          4  We are still talking about 22- 112?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  112, 22- 112.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          7  Okay, well that is where it was placed in there,

          8  that it goes to criminal court now, currently.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I see.  But, my

         10  position would be, that is not appropriate.  That

         11  these should be administrative fines that are issued

         12  just like the bulk of what the city fines are.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

         14  Well again, when I answered before to Council Member

         15  Nelson, he asked about the amount of the fines, I

         16  said they would be increased.  I said if you were

         17  using this provision.  But remember, this goes back

         18  as far as 1937, the last time that I could see it

         19  was enacted.  It may go back further than that.

         20  There was not ECB, there was you

         21  know--.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes, no there is

         23  a need to update this.

         24                 All right, thank you.

         25                 Is there any further questions?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON NELSON:  Jut as a wrap

          3  up, in that, I mean, we all want the same thing.  We

          4  want to be able to swim in the waters, and have our

          5  kids and our grandkids, and our future generations,

          6  so, we really just want to do as much as we possibly

          7  can.  I know you are with us on that to really, and

          8  really try to catch these cretins that are blocking

          9  our future plans.

         10                 Thank you, thank you for appearing,

         11  we appreciate it very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes, I thank

         13  you.  To be clear, my belief is that this- look,

         14  there are I guess three choices.             There

         15  is not a problem with illegal dumping in the

         16  waterways, there is a problem and we should leave it

         17  to the state and the feds, or there is a problem and

         18  we should be playing our part in enforcing it.

         19                 I think the correct answer is number

         20  three.  If you agree with that, then I would like to

         21  work with you on answering the questions about who

         22  should do it, what is the level, how do you define

         23  it, that sort of thing, which I agree with your

         24  genuine questions.

         25                 Maybe the language of 112 could be
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          2  updated, plainly it could be.  I think there is a

          3  need for something there, and I hope we can work

          4  together on crafting that.

          5                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER SCHWARTZ:

          6  Thank you, Council member.  I think we all work

          7  together, and we would work with you as well.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes, great,

          9  thank you.

         10                 We have two more witnesses, which is-

         11  from whom we are eager to hear; Basil Seggos from

         12  Riverkeeper and Ludger Balan from The Urban Divers

         13  Estuary Conservatory.

         14                 Mr. Seggos, and let me just start by

         15  again thanking you.  The Committee is extremely,

         16  extremely grateful to you and to Riverkeeper I

         17  should say really, for the work that you have done

         18  supplementing, and in some ways filling in the gap

         19  for what the government ought to be doing.

         20                 So, thank you.

         21                 MR. SEGGOS:  Thank you Chairman

         22  Yassky, and thank you members of the city council,

         23  and also thank you guys for taking the opportunity

         24  to, really take a birds' eye look at this, the

         25  regulation of our waterways and our waterfront.

                                                            67

          1  SANITATION, WATERFRONTS AND SMALL BUSINESS

          2                 Certainly, you are lone wolves when

          3  it comes to government representatives and agencies

          4  looking after our waterways today.  And that goes

          5  for, certainly, many of the great individuals within

          6  the city government, particularly the dockmasters

          7  who have done great work, and I want to take the

          8  chance to really congratulate them for some of the

          9  things they have done in the last year.

         10                 We certainly are in favor of Intro.

         11  581 and Intro. 500, for that matter.

         12                 These two introductory bills for me

         13  really look to be the first really important step in

         14  taking that birds' eye approach to this problem, and

         15  deconstructing it because I think that needs to

         16  happen.

         17                 You have certainly, as has been

         18  discussed today, a lack of coordination at the

         19  federal level and the state level you have a lack of

         20  enforcement, period.  Diminished resources,

         21  diminished will, and this is playing out, I think,

         22  very plainly on the waterways.

         23                 As I talked about last time, many of

         24  our waterways really, these tributaries, these

         25  inlets off of the harbor, that are sort of out of
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          2  sight and out of mind, exists in this really

          3  horribly polluted state, and really one of the

          4  biggest problems, obviously, is sewage, the way we

          5  operate our sewage system citywide, that is really

          6  the main cause of our waterways being, sort of,

          7  unfishable and unswimmable, but these hundreds if

          8  not thousands of little pollution sources, this is

          9  really the death of a thousand cuts.  Our waterways

         10  are dying, some of these tiny waterways are out of

         11  sight and out of mind, are literally dying because

         12  we historically have turned our back on the

         13  waterfront.

         14                 I mean, Central Park became Central

         15  Park because

         16  our waterways were so nasty.  Just take an example,

         17  look at

         18  Central Park, imagine if we had been dumping for

         19  years in Central Park, would we have had`The Gates'

         20  in Central Park?  Our

         21  waterways--.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes, but which

         23  way does that cut?

         24                 MR. SEGGOS:  Which way does that cut,

         25  that is right, it is a lot of crowds and traffic.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  No, it was a

          3  good thing.

          4                 MR. SEGGOS:  One of the points that I

          5  am getting at is that city does not really realize

          6  the full value of its waterways.  There is no

          7  question about it.  There is sort of an old

          8  paradigm, which looks at our waterways as the, sort

          9  of, historic dumping grounds and loads of commerce,

         10  whereas, the future value of our waterways is

         11  something more balanced between a working waterfront

         12  industry which we support wholeheartedly, and a wide

         13  array of uses, recreational uses and residential

         14  uses, when appropriate.

         15                 Currently, the approach that the City

         16  has, and the approach that the feds and state have

         17  is this arcane approach, which is unsustainable, and

         18  I think that you see that play out with the

         19  resources dedicated to enforcing the environmental

         20  laws.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Let me jump in

         22  just because we are among friends here, and I am

         23  glad, thank you, I hope- I invite the Administration

         24  folks to just stay for the- the rest of this will be

         25  quite brief, I think.
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          2                 But this is astonishing, your written

          3  testimony here, which will be made part of the

          4  record, has just an astonishing list of possible

          5  violations that Riverkeeper has witnessed and most

          6  cases documented.

          7                 MR. SEGGOS:  Yes.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I say possible

          9  because you are not a court but I guess you cannot

         10  determine that definitively but I do not know, there

         11  must be three dozen here, oil seeping, broken

         12  chipping pallets, scrap yard, another scrap yard,

         13  soil for the recycler which presumably the reason it

         14  is there is that it is polluted, discharge from a

         15  pipe, waste, a whole variety of waste from one

         16  company, mysterious pipes with sewage laden water,

         17  cement plant with liquid cement waste water, another

         18  cement plant with liquid cement waste water, beer

         19  distributor with wash water, liquor distributor with

         20  wash washer, machinery storage site with wash water

         21  and runoff, that is all in Newtown Creek.  Gowanus

         22  Canal; cement plant with liquid cement waste water,

         23  soil recycling facility, mysterious pipe discharging

         24  sewage, warehouse discharging waste water, and so

         25  on.
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          2                 Several of these had citizen suits

          3  initiated by Riverkeeper, which I commend you for

          4  your doing, but does it really take that?

          5                 In other words, what has been the

          6  government response to these possible violations?

          7                 MR. SEGGOS:  Well, I would say that

          8  the government response that we have gotten in the

          9  City here has been generally what we get statewide,

         10  which is "we are doing the best we can with limited

         11  resources."

         12                 We will report a case, a problem, to

         13  the state, which we typically do, and we often

         14  expect follow up immediately because of the

         15  perceived pollution problem, and the damage to the

         16  resource, and we rarely actually get that because of

         17  these limited resources, and the lack of top- down

         18  will at the state level.

         19                 I think one of the things that we

         20  were able to do with our notice letters was

         21  effectively put the cop back on the beat, if you

         22  want to think of it in, sort of, police terms.

         23                 One thing that we did do, I think, is

         24  look at this through the broken windows theory, and

         25  I mentioned this during the last hearing, which you
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          2  have a lot of broken windows, there is no cop on the

          3  beat, there is the perception that anything goes,

          4  and therefore, it happens like that, and you have a

          5  very dirty approach to the waterfront.

          6                 You had mentioned earlier, in the

          7  absence of actually having a committed federal

          8  government and state government to really clean

          9  waterways, you have to look for ways to fill the

         10  gaps.  Certainly, our citizens suits is one way but,

         11  obviously, that is not sustainable.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Do you think

         13  there would be value to having direct enforcement

         14  authority from the City?

         15                 MR. SEGGOS:  No question about it.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  And based on

         17  your experience with the various agencies here

         18  today, that was the Department of Sanitation, Small

         19  Business Services, and Department of Environmental

         20  Protection, of course, and then there was some

         21  question about the Department of Buildings having

         22  some responsibility, which of those agencies do you

         23  think would be the most effective at enforcement?

         24                 MR. SEGGOS:  Well, I would really

         25  have to defer to the agencies themselves, but it
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          2  seems to me at least, that the most expertise is

          3  within the Department of Environmental Protection.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes.

          5                 MR. SEGGOS:  I am just thinking long-

          6  term about this approach.

          7                 Just off the top of my head, I would

          8  think DEP, of course because Small Business Services

          9  has really a different function, as does DOS, and

         10  there is some overlap of course, but the

         11  globalization, if you want to call it that, of

         12  infrastructure, IT, can only help that sort of

         13  coordinated approach to a problem like this, and I

         14  want to make a really important point.

         15                 This is not about creating a climate

         16  hostile to businesses.

         17                 This is about creating a climate with

         18  a level playing field, and you are rewarding the

         19  companies that are following the law, taking away

         20  the competitive advantage that those who break the

         21  law actually have, and in the long run, you are

         22  actually investing businesses in the communities in

         23  the waterway as a resource, as opposed to it being a

         24  logger- heads relationship between regulators, the

         25  effected community and the environmentalists.
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          2                 I think that is a really important

          3  thing, and I think that gets back to my earlier

          4  point about the future value of our harbor.

          5                 What is the future value?  Well, it

          6  is a shared harbor in the long- run I think that is

          7  something the City needs to begin figuring out ways

          8  to achieve.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes, no that

         10  point is very important, and I share it with you.

         11                 There is no question that first of

         12  all, most businesses like most people, they want to

         13  do the right thing, they want to be good citizens.

         14  When they become- when we make it so that you are a

         15  sucker if you do not- if you obey the rules because

         16  everybody around you is not, that is a real problem.

         17

         18                 I do not think we are there, by the

         19  way, in terms of waterfront pollution.  My

         20  experience, the vast bulk of waterfront businesses

         21  are very responsible.

         22                 MR. SEGGOS:  Very much so.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  But you do not

         24  want it to get to that point, for sure.

         25                 Okay, why don't we hear from Mr.
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          2  Balan, and then we can have any questions?

          3                 MR. BALAN:  Ludger Balan, I represent

          4  the Urban Divers Estuary Conservancy, and I am the

          5  Executive and Environmental Program Director.

          6                 The Urban Divers have been looking at

          7  all the ways, more or less, as a natural resource,

          8  and finding ways to try to solve some of the

          9  problems that it has or, part of it is providing

         10  some conservation support, public education, as well

         11  as investigating pollution issues and providing some

         12  type of remediation to these problems.

         13                 One of the things I wanted to maybe

         14  talk about here is, we look at, and I guess it is

         15  known, we are and the New York City has a problem

         16  with illegal dumping all over the harbor and

         17  pollution everywhere.

         18                 What we are now looking at is the

         19  cost of those impacts.  The costs on public health,

         20  our children, the costs also in the eco- system that

         21  we live around.

         22                 For instance, we talked about the,

         23  which is well documented, the document that we

         24  presented to you today, about say sediment discharge

         25  into the harbor.  Well, what exactly does that mean?
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          2    For instance, in the Gowanus Canal there is an

          3  area that is 35 X 25 square yards that is completely

          4  hardened by cement and gravel dumped at the bottom,

          5  and New York City, a lot of the problems that we

          6  have along the harbor, what is out of sight is out

          7  of mind, becomes a cesspool for everyone, a lot of

          8  polluters.

          9                 The Gowanus Canal, the Coney Island

         10  Creek, the Bushwick Inlet, Wallabout Bay, Newtown

         11  Creek of course, all of these sites because they are

         12  out of sight, out of mind, they do not have a public

         13  access or public relationship to the water, they are

         14  left simply for the use of a lot of industry.

         15                 They are not being well monitored,

         16  with very poor business practices along their

         17  shoreline.

         18                 The documents you have in front of

         19  you is over the course of the year, okay, on one

         20  single trip on the Harlem River, we have documented

         21  seven sites of dry weather discharge.  That was in

         22  one single trip, okay, which we were able to have

         23  enough time, all right, to take the photographs of

         24  all these things that occur.            So, these

         25  are pretty common occurrences, and in one particular
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          2  case on the Coney Island Creek, there are two

          3  supermarkets around the Coney Island Creek, it was

          4  amazing, there were 174 shopping carts dumped along

          5  Sewell Avenue (phonetic) Bridge.  We are asking

          6  ourselves where did the shopping carts come from,

          7  well, there are two shopping centers around the

          8  area.

          9                 There is also a metal recycling place

         10  in the area. We looked at the Gowanus Canal and the

         11  Newtown Creek, and we looked at how the businesses

         12  are- what the practices of the aggregate industries

         13  are.

         14                 We find that a lot of the industries

         15  along these bodies of waters have all this floatable

         16  debris exposed and pushed extremely to the edge of

         17  the water.  With the advent of rain, wind, all that

         18  stuff gets discharged into the water.

         19                 I think in our process, we need to

         20  also think about how to implement certain laws and

         21  regulations.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Let me ask you,

         23  have you reported these conditions to city agencies?

         24                 MR. BALAN:  Yes.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Which ones?
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          2                 MR. BALAN:  We have a close

          3  relationship with DEP because we partner with the

          4  harbor monitoring program.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  And what

          6  response have you gotten?

          7                 MR. BALAN:  None, we reported the--.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Do they at least

          9  explain this is not- based on what I heard earlier

         10  this afternoon, I guess I would expect the response

         11  would be, "this is not our job, it is the states'

         12  job".  Is that the response or is--?

         13                 MR. BALAN:  Between the DEP and the

         14  DEC, we have always gotten this`who's responsible

         15  for what'- it has never been clear to us until the

         16  present, yes, we do get a lot of passing the buck to

         17  somebody else, and in fact, we were not aware that a

         18  business institution, they were sort of the

         19  enforcement agencies for those particular avenues.

         20                 As of the beginning, we have been at

         21  this play for about ten years, the Urban Divers for

         22  five years, and the New York City, the relationship

         23  we have always known with DEP and DEC were the

         24  responsible regulatory bodies.  It is actually only

         25  this year that we are hearing that the Harbor
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          2  Business Institution were the ones that are the

          3  enforcement of these particular issues.

          4                 When we look at the New York City

          5  waterways, we look at navigability, that is the Army

          6  Corp of Engineer.  When somebody dumps heavy debris

          7  in the water, they become a navigable problem. So

          8  these agencies also have a role to play.  The

          9  permitting of, say for example, of the Gowanus

         10  Canal, there is a host of drain pipes that are not

         11  labeled, and the permit for these pipes comes from

         12  DEC, once they are discharged in the water, the

         13  toxin is dropped in the water, is the DEP area.

         14  That is what we have been told in working with them

         15  but when we try to track back to whom will enforce

         16  what, it has never been clear.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes.

         18                 MR. BALAN:  We have problems- we have

         19  a lot of unlabeled pipe drains that are mysterious

         20  and all of them--.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I think one

         22  thing that I hope will come out of this- it will be,

         23  a clear enforcement protocol.           It is

         24  becoming increasingly clear to me just as the

         25  afternoon goes on that DEP is the appropriate
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          2  agency.

          3                 I hope- we will work with the

          4  Administration folks and, obviously, if they feel

          5  strongly, differently, then we ought to take that

          6  into account.

          7                 I do not think there can be any

          8  dispute that we need a clear enforcement protocol.

          9                 Council Member Brewer.  Oh, I am

         10  sorry.

         11                 MR. BALAN:  I wanted to add, just

         12  one- then I will answer your questions please.

         13                 We may also want to entertain that

         14  from our particular study that we are looking at, a

         15  lot of these inlets are very small, hardly

         16  navigable, especially Coney Island Creek, we have

         17  bridges issues, you have bridges in the Gowanus

         18  Canal.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes.

         20                 MR. BALAN:  But yet, they are

         21  inundated by these "unwanted, not in my backyard

         22  industries."

         23                 Now, the idea again, we are a group

         24  that of course supports the accommodations of

         25  industries, important for our New York City's
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          2  development and growth.  But we are looking at- as

          3  we having rezoning plans for different parts of the

          4  city to absorb certain types of industries or areas

          5  that could do it or not, we do not think that these

          6  inlets that are so small, hardly navigable, with

          7  poor geology, can sustain the types of industries

          8  that are put along them.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Well, that is a

         10  large question raised.  We need jobs, and we need

         11  particularly jobs that are not somewhere, the middle

         12  kind of job, that are not Wall Street but are not

         13  minimum wage restaurant worker jobs, so, I think the

         14  question you raise today is a difficult one, but

         15  let--.

         16                 MR. BALAN:  Well, what they do left

         17  behind are essentially brownfields, so these

         18  particular classifications are- there are

         19  restrictions already in place to where they should

         20  be.            I am just simply saying, you do not

         21  put them next to a natural resource.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes, Council

         23  Member Brewer.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  David Yassky

         25  and you are much more informed on this than I am but
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          2  it does seem to me there was a discussion earlier of

          3  these two dockmasters who do not have a boat, and I

          4  am just wondering, should they have a boat?  And

          5  have you ever- I know I think David has done this

          6  but have you taken the two, three or four agencies

          7  who are involved in this area of enforcement on the

          8  waterfront on some kind of a tour with everybody in

          9  the same place at the same time?

         10                 MR. BALAN:  Yes.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I think you

         12  mentioned that you had done that last time.

         13                 MR. BALAN:  Yes, we did.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  I do not

         15  remember what the result was of all of that.

         16                 MR. BALAN:  We took a trip along the

         17  Newtown Creek, down the East River to the Gowanus

         18  Canal, and we pointed out a lot of the issues that

         19  are pretty, just very visible.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right, and

         21  you said you had not gotten much follow up?

         22                 MR. BALAN:  No.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And you still

         24  have not?

         25                 MR. BALAN:  No.

                                                            83

          1  SANITATION, WATERFRONTS AND SMALL BUSINESS

          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  And that was

          3  all put in writing, in addition to the tour?

          4                 MR. BALAN:  The documentation you

          5  have here was provided during our last conference

          6  here.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right, and

          8  you have not had any follow up?

          9                 MR. BALAN:  No.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So, to the

         11  best of your knowledge, even for instance the

         12  shopping carts are still in that same location?

         13                 MR. BALAN:  The shopping carts, there

         14  was a fortunate occurrence during that period.  We

         15  had an assemblyman that was really, sort of,

         16  offended by- we took him to the water and he saw it,

         17  and he did respond and he had it removed.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So those

         19  shopping carts have been removed?

         20                 MR. BALAN:  As of December, we did

         21  notice a return of dumping of the carts at the

         22  Sewell Avenue Bridge, yes.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Okay.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I am sorry, who

         25  removed them did you say?
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          2                 MR. BALAN:  The assemblyman Colton

          3  had charged the Army Corp of Engineers to come and

          4  remove them because they were unnavigable and --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Finally the Army

          6  Corp of Engineers removed them?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  This is more

          8  bizarre by the minute, when it comes to the

          9  agencies.

         10                 MR. SEGGOS:  I would just like to add

         11  something to what Ludger said.

         12                 We actually had the Department of

         13  Small Business Services on our boat, as well as

         14  Councilman Yassky, and the district attorney from

         15  Brooklyn, Hynes, in July looking at also Newtown

         16  Creek, and the Gowanus, and parts of the East River,

         17  and actually from that day we have had good follow

         18  up.

         19                 We had a number of smaller cases, the

         20  cars were moved, SBS took out cars from the creek,

         21  fixed up the fence, and got some barrels removed

         22  from close proximity to the water.

         23                 In addition to that, we also have

         24  this, sort of, fairly high profile environmental

         25  criminal prosecution from the Brooklyn district
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          2  attorney all coming out of that one day, but that

          3  took, essentially, Riverkeeper bringing out boat

          4  from all the way Upstate down here to meet on this

          5  very warm July day to bring everybody around the

          6  harbor, and finally that is when action was taken.

          7                 I think that this gets to your

          8  question as to whether or not the City needs a boat

          9  for these purposes, and I think without question it

         10  does because the expertise is here for sure, and the

         11  City probably knows its waterfront a lot better

         12  than we do, and they are in the position to provide

         13  that kind of follow up.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  Right.

         15                 MR. SEGGOS:  And when I say that I

         16  mean, they are in theory, in the position to if the

         17  restructuring is--.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  So the boat

         19  could provide, obviously, access for the dockmasters

         20  who have a great deal, but also could provide if- I

         21  am confused as to who is supervising what but in any

         22  case, it could put all the relevant city, state, and

         23  off- budget agencies in one place whenever necessary

         24  to be able to monitor, and summons, and stop

         25  appropriately, and do it on a regular basis.  It
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          2  would seem to me you cannot just do a one shot.

          3                 MR. BALAN:  Yes, absolutely.  I would

          4  tell you, we cannot do what we do without having a

          5  boat, so it seems to us it would be quite absurd to

          6  sort of see that it--.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  It is not

          8  hard to gets boats by the way, there are surplus

          9  boats, it is not impossible.

         10                 MR. LIPTON:  No, it is not hard at

         11  all council member.

         12                 You are so absolutely right, of

         13  course the Department of Environmental Protection

         14  does have boats that they use in the survey that

         15  they were talking about before, Parks Department,

         16  Police Department but, the reason I say that, the

         17  Department of Environmental Protection is- that is

         18  just suggestive of the fact that they have the

         19  infrastructure for dealing with water pollution in a

         20  way that DSBS really does not.  Boats are just the

         21  least of it because as you say, they are not so hard

         22  to get.

         23                 MR. SEGGOS:  You are not adding a

         24  substantial cost to the City, in fact, by asking the

         25  DEP to conduct these kinds of patrols.  If the boat
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          2  is already there, the infrastructure, the insurance,

          3  the gas, the pump, the marina, and all that, that

          4  adds up over time, you have got to have somebody to

          5  look after the boat, so in fact, maybe the DEP is

          6  sort of, this shoreline survey and sentinel program

          7  could use some teeth or something.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes, I am just

          9  saying it may be, if the DSBS is going to keep this

         10  enforcement authority, certainly they should have a

         11  boat.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  They could

         13  share the boat maybe with DEP.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Like maybe the

         15  answer is to have DEP do it.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER BREWER:  This is not

         17  complicated.

         18                 Thank you.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you, well

         20  I just want to thank you.  Did you a closing point

         21  you want to make there?  You look like--.

         22                 MR. BALAN:  I wanted to go back- when

         23  I was actually questioned about- I was looking at

         24  the Gowanus Canal, we both participated in the tour

         25  with the Counsel Hynes, and we had of course, the
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          2  Newtown Creek was dealt with.  The Gowanus Canal

          3  conditions have not been remediated in any way

          4  whatsoever, and those were pretty simple things to

          5  do.  That is how we felt about that, yes.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Okay.

          7                 MR. SEGGOS:  I just have one

          8  statement in closing.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Yes.

         10                 MR. SEGGOS:  That this is really a

         11  great opportunity for sure, at a fairly crucial time

         12  I think, in the City's sort of, reconstruction of

         13  its infrastructure, and its approach to the future.

         14                 You just look at one thing like the

         15  New York City 2012 Olympics, and a lot of scrutiny

         16  this week was paid to the conditions of the

         17  waterways, and the IOC in fact was presented, I was

         18  not obviously privy to these meetings, but the IOC

         19  was presented, at least through the media, various

         20  waterways problems; raw sewage discharges, the

         21  conditions of our rivers, and the fact that our- the

         22  swimming leg of the New York City Triathlon had to

         23  be cancelled two years ago because of the raw sewage

         24  in the waterways.

         25                 While I think that- you know and this
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          2  gets to the cost, that Ludger had eluded to, the

          3  cost to the City of a dirty waterway far exceed the

          4  cost of actually putting together a program like

          5  this.  And that leaves aside the biggest issue which

          6  is human health, and what the residents that live

          7  around these waterways have to go through on a daily

          8  basis today.

          9                 So, I only mention Olympics as an

         10  opportunity, but the reality and the morality and

         11  the ethical approach to cleaning up a waterway

         12  should begin now.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Absolutely, do

         14  any of the Olympic events take place in open water?

         15                 I guess sailing must.

         16                 MR. SEGGOS:  I am not sure where the

         17  sailing venue actually is.

         18                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER:  Jamaica Bay,

         19  is that it?

         20                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  But okay,

         21  whether any of the Olympic events take place in open

         22  water as opposed to a pool.

         23                 MR. BALAN:  Well, we do have our

         24  annual Hudson River swim here in New York City, so.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Indeed, indeed.
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          2                 MR. BALAN:  Yes, we do.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  You do.  Look

          4  Basil, you are absolutely right, I mean the Olympics

          5  is just a- and the visit by the IOC just draws

          6  attention to it.

          7                 One hopes that it is not the case

          8  that, well, that it would take hosting the Olympics

          9  to get us to deal with our water pollution problems.

         10

         11                 That is something we should be doing

         12  as a matter of course.

         13                 MR. BALAN:  Right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  I, at least, am

         15  determined to see that we do.  I know that the other

         16  members of the committee are as well.

         17                 I want to thank you very much for

         18  your help.

         19                 We will, as I said to the panel from

         20  the agencies, I do believe that we need to both

         21  streamline the enforcement mechanism, and I think we

         22  ought to go back and re- write this fairly

         23  archaically written provision, so that it can be

         24  used effectively, and I will hope that both of you

         25  will be willing to lend your expertise to the
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          2  committee as we do that.

          3                 MR. SEGGOS:  Certainly, thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON YASSKY:  Thank you, and

          5  with that the hearing is adjourned.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 MR. SEGGOS:  Thank you.

          8                 MR. BALAN:  Thank you.

          9                 (Hearing concluded at 3:00 p.m.)
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          2              CERTIFICATION

          3

          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, EMILY GRAVES, do hereby certify

         10  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         11  of the within proceeding.

         12                 I further certify that I am not

         13  related to any of the parties to this action by

         14  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         15  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         16                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         17  set my hand this 1st day of March 2005.
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                                   ---------------------

         25                          EMILY GRAVES

                                                            93

          1

          2             C E R T I F I C A T I O N
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          9            I, EMILY GRAVES, do hereby certify the

         10  aforesaid to be a true and accurate copy of the

         11  transcription of the audio tapes of this hearing.
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